
tllage
Salado

REGULAR MEETING OF THE
SALADO PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION

MEETING AGENDA

1:30 P.M., TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 6,2016
MUNICIPAL BUILDING

301 NORTH STAGECOACH, SALADO, TX
BOARD OF ALDERMEN CHAMBERS

1. Consider approval of the minutes from previous meetings:

I. CALL TO ORDER

a. Minutes, July 26,2016, meeting

II. REGULARAGENDA

2. Consider and take action on a proposed sign design in the Historic District located at 600 North Main
Street, Unit C, as per Section 3.15K, Permitting Process (Arts & Leisure Salado).

3. Presentation, discussion, and possible action on a Construction/Final Plat of Mill Creek Springs, Phase
VIII, a subdivision in the ETJ generally located at the comer of Hester Way and Blackberry.

4. PUBLIC HEARING - Hold a public hearing and consider a re-plat of Terra Bella Phase III, a 24.33 +/
acre subdivision in the ETJ located 'hmile north of the comer of Armstrong Road & SulpherWells Road.

5. PUBLIC HEARING - Presentation, public hearing, discussion, and possible action on amendments to the
Zoning Ordinance, (Ordinance 2013.08): Section 5.2, Landscape Requirements; Section 5.3, Residential
Fencing, Walls, & Screening Requirements; and Section 2.2B(6), Planning & Zoning Commission,
frequency of meetings.

III. WORKSHOP

6. Discussion regarding update of the Future Land Use Plan.

IV. ADJOURN

Called Meeting ofP&Z Commission, September 6,2016· Page 1of2



'All meetings of the Planning & Zoning Commission are open to the public, except when there is a necessity to
meet in in an Executive Session (closed to the public) under the provisions of Section 551, Texas Government
Code. The Planning & Zoning Commission reserves the right to convene into Executive Session to hear any of.
the above described agenda items that qualifies for an executive session by publicly announcing the applicable
section number of the Open Meetings Act.

This facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for accommodations or interpretive services
must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting. Please contact the Village Secretary's office at (254) 947-5060 for further assistance.

I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of this Notice of Meeting was posted in a public place at 5:00 p.m.
on Friday, September 2,2016.

Removed from display: _

Called Meeting of P&Z Commission, September 6, 2016 • Page 2 of 2



Village of Salado, Texas
Planning & Zoning Commission

Minutes
Special Called Meeting

1:30 p.m. Tuesday, July 26,2016
Municipal Building, 301 N. Stagecoach Road

Board of Aldermen Chambers

Members Present: Merle Stalcup, K.D. Hill, Ron Coleman.

Members Absent: Jim Reed, LarryWolfe, Alternate Curt Doucet.

Others Present: Kim Foutz, Village Administrator; Chrissy Lee, Planning & Development.

I. Call to Order.

Chairman Merle Stalcup called the meeting to order at 1:35 p.m.

1. Consider approval of the minutes from the June 7,2016, meeting.

Commissioner Coleman made a motion to approve the minutes of the June 7, 2016,
meeting. Commissioner Hill seconded. The motion carried unanimously (3-0).

II. Regular Agenda.

2. Consider and take action on an alteration to a building in the Historic District, including
awning ad sign design, located at 1Royal Street as per Section 3.15K, Permitting Process
(Sugar Shack).

The applicant is proposing a new dome style awning over the front of the building facing
Main Street. The awningwill be 51' long x 3' drop x 3' projection. Itwill be built with an
aluminum frame, pink sunbrella fabric, white acrylic lettering (see attached picture). The
applicant has the permission of the building owner.

The Historic Society's response to the request is that the addition of a pink awning with
white letters is not in keeping with the historic qualities of the Rosanky building. Tbhe
objection is not to the awning but to the color choice.

CommissionerHill made a motion to approve an alternation to a building in the Historic
District, including awning and sign design, located at 1 Royal Street, as presented.
Commissioner Coleman seconded. The motion carried unanimously (3-0).

Salado P&Z Commission, Called Meeting, July 26, 2016' Page 1of3



3. Consider and take action on an alteration to a building in the Historic District, including
awning ad sign design, located at 401 S. Main Street, Suite 102, as per Section 3.15K,
Permitting Process (FSG Fine Jewelry).

The review by the Village staff notes the following:
• Awning is allowed citywide
• Attached and hanging signs are allowed citywide
• The maximum sign area allowed is 8 s.f. (1 s.f. per linear foot of building frontage)

for the front sign. The maximum sign area allowed is 48 s.f. for the rear sign.
• The proposed s.f. of hanging sign (front) is 5.25 s.f.
• The proposed s.f. of attached sign (back) is 14 s.f.
• Proposed materials for both are allowed citywide
• No illumination is proposed

The Historic Society has no objections to the proposal.

Commissioner Coleman made a motion to approve an alternation to a building in the
Historic District, including awning and sign design, located at 401 S. Main Street, Suite
102, as presented. Commissioner Hill seconded. The motion carried unanimously (3-
0).

4. Consider and take action on an alteration to a building in the Historic District located at
600 North Main Street, Suite B, as per Section 3.15K, Permitting Process (SophistiKatz
Bead Emporium).

The review by the Village staff notes the following:

• Attached/wall signs are allowed citywide
• Themaximum sign area allowed is 45 s.f(l s.f. per linear foot of building frontage)
• The proposed s.f. of attached sign is 32 s.f.
• Proposed material is allowed citywide
• No illumination is proposed
• Installation and location is allowed citywide

The Historic Society has no objections to a 4' x 8' sign.

Commissioner Hill made a motion to approve a proposed sign design, located at 600 N.
Main Street, Suite B, as presented. Commissioner Hill seconded. The motion carried
unanimously (3-0).

5. Consider and take action on an alteration to a building in the Historic District located at
201 North Main Street, as per Section 3.1SK, Permitting Process (Susan Marie's).

A correction was made, as the actual address of the property in question is 171N. Main
Street.

Salado P&Z Commission, Called Meeting, July 26, 2016· Page 2 of3



The review by the Village staff notes the following:

• Attached/wall signs are allowed citywide
• Hanging signs are allowed citywide
• The maximum sign area allowed is 37 s.f. (1 s.f. per linear foot of building frontage)
• The proposed s.f. of attached sign is 2 s.f.
• The proposed s.f. of hanging sign is 6 s.f.
• Proposed materials for both are allowed citywide
• No illumination is proposed
• Installation and locations are allowed citywide

The Historic Society has no objections to the sign.

Commissioner Hill made a motion to approve a proposed sign design, located at 171N.
Main Street, as presented. Commissioner Hill seconded. The motion carried
unanimously (3-0).

III. Adjourn.

Chairman Stalcup adjourned the meeting at 2:04 p.m.

Merle Stalcup, Acting Chairman

Mary Ann Ray, Village Secretary

Salado P&Z Commission, Called Meeting, July 26, 2016· Page 3 of3



SALADO PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION
AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM

9/6/2016
Item #2

Page 1 of 1

DEPTIDIVISION REVIEW: Chrissy Lee, Planning and Development

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider and take action on a proposed sign design in the Historic District located at
600 North Main Street, Unit C, as per Section 3.15K, Permitting Process (Arts & Leisure Salado).

HISTORIC SOCIETY RECOMMENDATION: Historic Society has no objections to the signs. (Verbal
ow/HansFields on 9/1/2016)

ITEM SUMMARY AND ANALYSIS: The applicant is proposing a 36" W x 42" H rectangular attached sign.
The sign will be light tan with black lettering (see attached depiction). The applicant has the permission of the
building owner.

As per Section 3.158 of the Zoning ordinance, a sign and awning are defined as an Alteration, therefore it must be
approvedby the Planning and Zoning Commission.Alteration: Any change to the exterior of a Historic Landmark,
building, object, structure or site within the designated district. For buildings, objects, sites or structures, alteration
shall include, but is not limited to, the changing of roofing or siding materials; changing, eliminating, or adding
doors, door frames, windows, window frames, shutters, fences, railings, porches, balconies, signs, or other
ornamentation, painting previously unpainted surfaces, removing paint, or the changing of paint color.

Purpose: The HD, Historic District is intended to implement the goals and policies of the Village concerning the
preservation of historically significant elements within the original Village area. The HD, Historic District is
intended to preserve, enhance, and perpetuate those aspects of the Village having historical, cultural, architectural
and archaeological merit.

EVALUATION CRITERIA
1. To preserve, protect, and enhance historically, culturally, architecturally, and archaeologically significant sites

and structures which represent the unique character of Salado and serve as reminders of the village's historical,
cultural, architectural, and archaeological heritage;

2. To provide a review process for the appropriate preservation and development of important historical, cultural,
architectural, and archaeological resources;

3. To ensure the harmonious, orderly, and efficient growth and development of the Village;
4. To protect and enhance Salado's attractiveness to visitors and the support and stimulus to the economy thereby

provided;
5. Tomaintain a generally harmonious appearance of both historic and modem structures through the use of

complimentary scale, form, color, proportion, texture, and material;

ATTACHMENTS:
• Photograph of attached sign and attached sign placement



Salado
AnArtisan Co-Operative
, ArtsandLeisureSalado.com

Sponsored by: Knicely Krack'd Pottery & ~





SALADO PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION
AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM

9/6/2016
Item #3

Page 1 of 1

DEPT/DIVISION REVIEW: Chrissy Lee, Planning and Development

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Presentation, discussion, and possible action on a Construction!Final Plat of Mill Creek
Springs, Phase VIII, a subdivision in the ETJ generally located at the comer of Hester Way and Blackberry.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval.NOTE: A motion to approvemust include language
authorizingdeferral of infrastructure installation and that the final plat may not be filed until improvementshave been
accepted.

ITEM SUMMARY AND ANALYSIS: The Construction! Final Plat of Mill Creek Springs, Phase VIII involves
26 single family residential lots out of a 20.664 acre subdivision located in the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction of
Salado. This phase conforms to the Concept Plan on file.

Water services will be provided by Salado Water Supply Corporation through a 6-inch water line within a 20' wide
utility easement.

The applicant is proposing on-site sewage facilities for all lots in the subdivision. Common areas/lots will be owned
and maintained by the subdivision's Home Owners' Association.

The Village's engineer has reviewed the Final Plat and has determined that it is in conformance with the
Village's requirements. There are several outstanding items that will be addressed by staff after consideration but
before filing at the Bell County Courthouse:

• Construction of public improvements, including water improvements, must be completed.
• The Applicant's design engineer will need to provide a letter bearing a sealed certification that all

public improvements are constructed in compliance with all Village construction standards and other
applicable Village design requirements.

• Correspondence from the County Engineer regarding inspection and Letter of Acceptance of the
infrastructure.

• The Applicant's design engineer will provide 2 sets of as-builts and an electronic copy of the plat
Note: staff has not required a construction bond since this development is in the County and the
County requires bonding.

Note: This plat receivedwaivers to Section 3.5 Sidewalks,Section 5.5DRamps, Section 3.1C5 Offsite Improvements,
and Section 5.9 Perimeter Street Improvements at the 06/16/016 BOAmeeting.

FISCAL IMPACT: None

ATTACHMENTS:
• Location Map
• Final Plat

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



~

INTERSTATE 35



,ot!;'''N'"S'Td'iI'I1!<W'J~''!I'I

~:;= :;"':~II-:".,,:~ :::~PJ.e..d~"!:'~.~~.4;~u"!"=t~~gij~
_LlJ~""""'WO<>M!IIIIlf!PUD""'I'4\J"M""" O,DJn""DpUOlonl""

uD WDJJ ,Did 81'11 poaxId"d11"'I1-<J1~.~.cq".4op '.""",31_'" 'I ,DIU

IIOlIq(]dIfIl:)~lddru; II:llM 1IIl"W$
31.1l1·]/\U_J.N]$lMn, GllWM!lISJI:I

S3~'1t99'OZ"

S)!:J01!1 E 'S1.01 sz
IlIA 3SYHd

SQNIY.aS
)["i).JJ [mv•'1IO~J.Vld ''o'JoIl:I

·NJ1SAS~"1d.-lS01'0'1'1lHl JD S:n:n~.:I-11 HHII J:lNltlUIDXI~NI IDl
tCYJ III 3:II"1I3~ 3llli\m1~ D1 1CI1'N 1031 lI\~H SKIJS1NJIIa a.w JtIIISli'IiG11lS1l3SD.IJ1ld lHi .lI\M3SOIII 3tIJlSS)lId
ow "lU~ ·UI-.w1D1~3I:l.1_'_"'SN1lDl¥II 3I!1"m;a Ol n_:JII_ sl HnSASMlll(".IIIJ.SI~u.... '''_'s ~:uv"
U3IiDaUIIdJH1JW!US]I.>Jl!IXI·WllSAS...lddllSlII)l_¥IIJI.,..,.,U3A0l:I_ .... ·JI(lIlVIIDdiKJJ.lldd!1SlO.l¥"IJII.,1'S

~I02~SJI'.r.ilI:mrJI:t~

.10 l 133HS
'9102 '1I'1f ·,-----..:10 AW--JHJ. SIH11[llVII

9BE-9T :'ON ear
SJ.N3S3I:1d3S3HJ.A91031'1TN'_)I

TlJ8 ..:10AlNi"lCm
S'VlGJ..:I03J. ...1S

)1008 13J,37 '11;11d51H1)'9"
Q3I1l<!l::JSJ(JAHIJdD&! ]H1 NO HJoOl::J T136..:10 .1:l11:lJ.Slll "'IVSI'lMddll'

X ... l 3Hl D1 3M S]XlI'l lN3nONn3!l DN A 11NJ~MnJ ]~I;I J~l
IdH<!IJ3 ABJ!:IJH SJOO AHlflID 11Jll .:10 lJI1:I1SIU 1I;lSIII'~dd\f X...1 »u

'11J\'IQ1,UIIL~ .. "",,-omaQL~Y_~-"umoa-gu
)I._ .. u..,....,. .. ~JJI .... _.,X"Tl.. _....,. .......

'StOll.AlDIU)lI\f
1...... SIH.1NIl ttI'oOHS$~ SINJl<jlSll] ~N¥U"'1\II1Imj ~nlrld Tl'I

·••"'lItt_DNl ..LNllOII"'"UI-.n.o."$!O_.lNIlIiIlDIrlllSlOe: '"e: H38J13.Ld3s·31 va
31111111U1J1r.1K.t_

JI\lIl{IJ,J'l1f3"l!OWS
la"ID1131"~nlA
']/\1l1l(I1131"_

...JI S13~lS 91/821 LO

...JW SJlON 91/22/ LO
SdlHS1:IJNI\D 911l0ll0

""'1 '=N~'::=~"!~~ 1_ ",,!I""!J'OIl

·.....l·-'ltJmo:lflO'l!",_lDld·--'l'fld·-~~

--. "--'JIII (llI(JJ'l~!iKlJ 0Jlw,

J:lRIISI)lIllal:;JflJWI.!NI'ICI.)11J9-------~

"J1DZ • --~." j~p - """' '~no I" ,w ••.... ~ ....... j~ -'"""" ~... ~

'P"'~""" "IO~""tS""'t~""~ _ ..".d~"""'f1. ...,~ _ .....

~~~'~,S£~£~~W~":}s~d~~~~,~~·,·E<S~~~£~1:h?;i.~
"91U~,--~ J" ~."-"I'A- ""'$,,0 $0 l~U ,.u~pu.~"" i9

"... • ...-. "I~ •• ~""""""' .... , puo __ alA .." ••.,~

~~~t!tro":"''''':!.~~"':lIl~~.J:.:r...~~~~~~;,' ~~"",.."~~o~~UO~~.:J!","""'5-.10<1 A." _ "" '511"1,,0 ~'~$ ..... ""J "... "" ~"""d j"",~<>N •• ~~,_~. """O'S~a,>UI'1 a~ .... '_~'I1}I;91-j II "MI.ol !flJNI~NJ
0009SQOi , ~Ij~ ~ns tl3arcm }r'dl:>NIHd 'DM 'H NJI!IQ3

JOIo.'<'(J--3fUSIH1·ONVHAI'ISS3N1Wo

'S¥Xll ·A.L'I!nQ:Jn3BJO ON¥S't'X11 'OO'o'l'WSJ03:J¥1l~3I-U..:IO
SNOllJ"llOS3l:i 0",," SNOU'f'lml31:1 'S]11111 'S3:lIflfNlOIIO :lNLllVld 11'W' 01 icsrere OJi\OlIdd'V' llfld SIH1

·300AJ'.Y 1'I0!lJ NOISSII'Ul3d !JN1!:I1'1:JOl:ld31'1U ANY 1v .llISSlOJN JHJ. lfIOHliM SfGlSJ.S
3NJ.OldS3!:I MI3Hl JO S1!fII'd 1:10T1Y :lNv.cm3~ ~ 01 fiNK1m' ONY ·S!ilJ.3N rn.Il~ ":lNINl'flNI'ffl

'OOnC»illfd ':lNU:J3dSNI ·:lIOu.:l!lIO.lSNO:J3I:I·:lNI.1::JnlOlSNO:J~O 3S0d"elfld 3Hl~ SJ.N3W3SVJ
311i.J.OJd5JM~['Hl NO!:U 0NIf 01 553~:lJ ONY SS31:1:lNI JO .Lf1:lIM llnJ 3H1 )l,,1tH 531'!U 1,.,. 111'TlIfH5

SJUUNJ ,unlJJ1 CJIlBnd ONY UNnOJ ll3H '00YlIfS JO J:lVTIIfo. 3Hl ·SJ.N3J'i13SV3OllIS N! S1'13J.SJ.S
3AIJ.03dS3~ Ml3fU ..:10 AJN3!OiJ..:IJ !:IO '3:>!1MG1NM'I 'eouonarseoo 3I-U Hl.JM JI0[3..:1~3J_NIMD l:l3:lN'lONJ

AlfM AnIf NI ).\'N H:lIHM SHlMOIO:l 1:10S1N3r1301OUdI'lI l:lJH10 100 SSI1llI-iS 'S3lIIJ_ '~0tG:I '5:>NICI1lna
AnIf ..OSUl'fdIKlTlVIl3AOI'I3I:Id3J.)lClN'o'3/lOI'IJl:l011H:lIl:l3H1)1,,"'H11I1'HSS3UllN3,unUn

JI18nd II*' AlNnOJ TOO"!lCJIflVS..:IO 3:l't'TM 3!{l ·JO:;IIn1·U. 3Sf1 S,A1Nf!O:l 1138 OI>lVS,OOVllfS
..:10 3:l'r'Tl1II ClN't' s.oreoa JHl 01 3lVNIO!ffi8l'lS :lN1J8 sairun JnBnd JHl ).8 JSn O""'S 'saurun

~n:lIU''o'd 01 aso 3Hl SlJ"n l1ilW3SV3 J+U SS31Nn 31'i'WS3H1 :lNISfl HO :En 01 :lNI~IS30 S3UnUl"l
:l!1Elnd Tl'I' ..:10 NOl1VOOJ'll'jOJJII' (IN\' asn 1WW1" 3Hl ~OJ uasn 38 OS"lV )..,." SlN31'GS'IJ AlJ11l1n
',""w

113]I:IJ TIll'! SW All:l3dO&J 03B1!:I:::IS3113IlO6\l N13M)H 3HJ. :lN1l\fN~IS]O l""d SUilldOO'I' AII3II3Ii S300
'l:l]:lI;ljO OJZIl:lOHHl't' A11'lO511 HOOO!:IHl 0N'f' AB NI'*I31i ~J.OV ':::ITI "d~:l $liminE! 31"f" 1"f'H1

:S1N3S3~d 3S3H1 AS N3ri Tl'V' MON", '3~O.:l3~;lH1 "MON
( souaacsac SaNnOB ON'V' S313t'1 ~Oj 1Vld SIH1 .:10 Z 133HS 3JN31:J3j3~ )

:5M0110.:1'YI G38I!:1:::l530A1~Vln:::lll~d 3~0V'i ~N138 ON'V $'V'X31 ',uNnOJ
1139 .:10 501::l0J31:Jonsna 1V1::J1.:I.:I0'L09tZOOO-9l0Z'ON 1N3V'inJOO Nl 01::l0J31:J

.:10 ~N138 CN'V'9l0Z 'IZ 3Nnr 031V'O 0330 N311 .:;103S\f3131:Jl'V'LlI:l"ll'd"V NI
03811::lJ5301:J'9'1::l13~:J\f -ss-oz NIV.l.!:I3:J1VHl ;:10 Tl\r' !)N138 ONV SVX31 ',uN110:J
1138.:10 S01:l0:J31:lonana 1V1JI.:;I.:;IO'LDL£'ZDOO-9LOl 'ON lN3t'jnJOO NI 01:l0J31:l

.:10 ~NI3B ON\t' aroz '91 3Nnr 0311fCl N31l 5,1:JOON311HllM 0330 ,uN'9'1:J1:JVM'V
A.EI r-l3Hl 01 03A3I1NOJ ( 1 l:)V1:Jl ) ONVl .:10 iJ'V1::l1saov 09['0;1' N1li11::l3JIlfH1

.:10 NOWJOd 1:JOlM'td 'V' ~N138 ON't 5VX31 AlNnOJ 1138 '"irS£; 'ON 1:)\f1::l1SBV
').31\1::lnSl't::lI1:Jcrvt'l3ddm:l 3Hl NI 031lfnllS ON¥l .:10 l:::l'9Cjl If .:;101::l3NMO3Hl

SI AN'VdriO:::l,uIlIB'til 0311V'iil JI1SJ1'10a 'V' ':Ill 'dn01::l~ !)NIOllna 31\1'A 'S\81::l3HM

me jO 'uNno:)
$'9')(3.1. .:;1031\115

I



SALADO PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION
AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM

9/6/2016
Item #4

Page 1 of 1

DEPTIDIVISION REVIEW: Chrissy Lee, Planning and Development

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Hold a public hearing and consider a re-plat of Terra Bella Phase III, a 24.33 +/- acre
subdivision in the ETJ located 1'2 mile north of the comer of Armstrong Road & Sulpher Wells Road.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends approval.

ITEM SUMMARY AND ANALYSIS: The Construction! Final Replat of Terra Bella Phase III involves 10 single
family residential lots out of a 24.33 acre subdivision located in the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction of Salado. This
item was originally placed on the June 7th P&Z agenda: however, was pulled for lack of concurrence from the water
supplier. As a special circumstance, staff placed it back on the agenda for this meeting with the understanding of the
developer that concurrence from the water supplier was needed as a condition of approval.

Water services will be provided by Armstrong Water Supply Corporation through a 4-inch water line within a 20'
wide utility easement.

The applicant is proposing on-site sewage facilities for all lots in the subdivision. Common areas/lots will be owned
and maintained by the subdivision's Home Owners' Association.

The Village's engineer has reviewed the Final Replat and has determined that it is in conformance with the
Village's requirements subject to the waivers outlined below. There are several outstanding items that will be
addressed by staff after consideration but before filing at the Bell County Courthouse:

• Construction of public improvements, including water improvements, must be completed.
• The Applicant's design engineer will need to provide a letter bearing a sealed certification that all

public improvements are constructed in compliance with all Village construction standards and other
applicable Village design requirements.

• Correspondence from the County Engineer regarding inspection and Letter of Acceptance of the
infrastructure.

• The Applicant's design engineer will provide 2 sets of as-builts.
Note: staff has not required a construction bond since the public infrastructure is nominal.

Note: This replat received a waiver to Section 3.9 Water and Wastewater Facility Design (fire protection) of the
Subdivision Ordinance 2009.03 on April 21. Section 3.9 subject to installation of a dry hydrant connecting to the
existing pond. Subdivision provision waived: Waterand WastewaterFacility Design: a) Watersupplyfor all new
subdivisions shall be connected with the appropriatepublicly certified water supply corporation, and shall be capable
ofproviding waterfor health and emergencypurposes, includingfire protection.

FISCAL IMPACT: None

ATTACHMENTS:
• Location Map
• Final Replat



Re-Plat of Terra Bella Phase III



,
f
i
i

w__

."., ,...,...,_ .....,
_Po
.oat-oJ "':D':II;........,._....,., .........

Z::l0 z 39Vd

........ -= 0

...... __ =:..-:::.= •--~_ ..._---

..._-

........ ~-~~

'_'~"T"1i5I'~ JD;JWTJlAiIiI.
JD (I".I.a/ NOU?I06Mr""~WlXa iIiI. NItlLIM

._ 'AIHIO? "T"1i5IJO ~ .LV'ld '!Hal iQ"5 '? J.iJIIS\I? HI ~ JO
'NOK;II\IOQI& VT'IiIB __ ' !:'.It?O'1i '01 .L01 _ II '.It?O'1i ~-iiQl.01 C1tN 9-1Ql.01 JD .LYIoERIV _

III 39VHd NOISIAIQ9ns '11139 ~3.1
oIO~ II"W



PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION
AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM

9/6/16
Item #5

Regular Agenda
Page 1 of 1

DEPTIDIVISION REVIEW: Kim Foutz, Village Administrator

ITEM DESCRIPTION: Presentation, public hearing, discussion, and possible action on amendments to the
Zoning Ordinance, (Ordinance 2013.08): Section 5.2, Landscape Requirements; Section 5.3, Residential Fencing,
Walls, & Screening Requirements; and Section 2.2B(6), Planning & Zoning Commission, frequency of meetings.

ITEM SUMMARY: The Board of Aldermen workshopped Section 5.2 Landscape Requirements on June 18 and
July 2, 2015, and then on August 20, 2015, voted to postpone action indefinitely. The Planning and Zoning
Commission workshopped and recommended for approval the Landscape section last year as well and the current
draft reflects those changes. The Landscape Section has since been reviewed and amended by the Ordinance
Committee, and it is this version that is being considered at this time.

Section 5.3Residential Fence requirements camebefore the Board of Aldermen for workshop onDecember 10,2015
and August 11,2016. Itwas then sent to the Ordinance Committee for review and amendment.

Due to increased plat activity and time sensitive deadlines prescribed by law, the Board of Aldermen would like to
change the zoning ordinance, Section 2.2B6, so that the Commissionmeets twice per month as opposed to only once
a month. Two regularly scheduledmeetings amonth would allow the legal requirements to be met, and if there is no
business for a particular meeting, the meeting will be cancelled and the members of the Commission notified.

COMMITTEE 1 STAFF RECOMMENDATION: The Ordinance Committee and Staff recommend approval.

FISCAL IMPACT: N/A

ATTACHMENTS:
• Section 5.2 of the Zoning Ordinance - Landscape
• Section 5.3 of the Zoning Ordinance - Residential Fencing, Walls, and Screening
• Section 2.2B6 of the Zoning Ordinance - Planning & Zoning Commission frequency of meetings



Section 5.2.1 Landscaping:Non-Residential

A. PURPOSEAND INTENT

Landscapingis intended to add value to property and is in the interest of the general
welfare of the Village. Landscapingalso servesto increasethe amount of property that
is pervious surface area. This in turn helps to reduce the amount of damageor erosion
created by storm water runoff, and any consequent non-point pollution in waterways.
Landscapingminimizes adverseeffects on surrounding property owners and the general
public, ensuring high quality development is maintain roughout the Village
achieving a more sustainable, attractive place in wh live, visit, and conduct
business.

B. DEFINITIONS
Refer to Section 5.8.

C. APPLICATION

nature and shall apply asoutH~~"8'-in
Table.

1. Any use r~~t,Ult~ga Conditlonal use'~~rQ~I!.or a PIa._~QedDevelopment zoning
designati6nJnI:i~i~~pmplywitthhes~ I~fta'~fap~e,stanm;rdsunlessspecial
landsf~~rig sta~d'irfJ~are oth~§ ~s~1ir'~vid~~'-}(jrin the ordinance establishing
the CUP~6t,·PDdist~rct - .

2. Thesen~~ji~jtperu~~Lsl?JJdardsapply to all non-residential zoning districts
~,~'-;;ilil~~om~rij~:t~m1Fili~!\i:n~nts. Th@requirements herein do not apply to

W5~~_es,except~~j)H;ZYmedby in Section 5.2.2.
a m·~1'ti~phaseproj~c'{must comply with this Section.

Alilandscap r.equirem·entsunder this Section shall run with the land once
·d~yelopment h""~:~~egun~i\gshall apply against any owner or subsequent owner.

5. ·WH'e.rein confli~t~lljth other sections of this or any other ordinance the stricter
req'U~"'-ments sh:#·;~·apply.

D.

A landscapeplan must accompany all site and/or construction plans submitted to the
Village for all Multi-Family Dwelling and Non-Residential Useprojects. Eachplan must
detail how the conditions of this Section are to be met.

1. Landscapingplans must include the following information.
a. Minimum scaleof one inch (1") equals fifty feet (50') shown in both

written and graphic form;
b. The date, title of project, name of owner, and North arrow/symbol;

9.2.16



9.2.16

c. Location of existing boundary lines and dimensions of the tract, and a
small map showing where the property is located;

d. Approximate centerline of existing water courses; the approximate
location of significant drainage features; and the location and size of
existing and proposed streets and alleys, refuse disposal areas, and
fences; the location of existing and proposed easements on or adjacent
to the lot including overhead utilities; existing and proposed parking
spaces, or other vehicular areas, access aisles, drives, and existing and
proposed sidewalks adjacent to the street; and an indication of adjacent
land use.

e. Location, size, spread, species, andty 0'0" tree, shrub, groundcover, or
turf) of proposed plants, togeth~(~iXtit:'ft~ plant listing that includes the
common and botanical name/qij1~tity:"'~fzejcontainer size, planted
height),and spacing of all proposed landscaplrigat time of planting;

f. Location of alilandscapi "~,arid screening matltl~ts" to be used, including
pavers, benches, screen lountajns, statues, ea~fh~~i:L_berms,ponds (to
include depth of water), rot~, to y of site, of151her landscape
features.

g.
practices; "'1

h. Layout and descrlp Ion of:itrlgation, sprtn~ler, or water systems including
IO!:oCiJjpn.pfwater s6urces; ." ..... IT'"

i. ,'A':!JB~W~Q~mclearly dl~R!ayi[lg_o"e 'r~I.~¥~.nt~t~tistical information
, ~_IlJcessary'fQ'LJheVillageit;6'e~~iuate to'1Upliance with the provisions of
t'I11~;;§.ection;~.ihisincludJ!gross acreage, square foot area of preservation
ar:ft:l.ands~aping) numbJ'r'of trees and shrubs to be planted or
. res~N~ a'r~~iootage ofp~ved areas, and similar other information
.: ;"J:lsure· .::onforma~~~:'~ltb ~IIrequired standards;

j. E~x11ijngandprop?sed graCd~sadequate to identify and properly specify
planririi~!or are'a_s_needingslope protection;
Limit Or~9JJstruction line encompassing all areas of natural vegetation of
the site w~ith are to be left undisturbed;

..,,=~survey jlf.~11trees eight (8) inches in caliper and larger measured 4.5
'~T~'§t>abg:[~:ground level, referred to herein as Protected Trees. Protected
Tr~t§~~1o be represented by circles; unbroken circles indicate trees
whlcli'are to remain and dashed circles indicate trees to be removed.
Include type and general condition of all surveyed trees within the site;
and

m. Identification of temporary measures during construction to protect
existing trees that will be remaining on the property.

2. The administrator, or his/her designee, will review all plans in accordance with
this Section. If the submitted plans do not meet the minimum requirements,
they will not be approved and notification will be sent to the applicant outlining

2



the deficiencies and corrections to be made. Once all items noted are resolved,
the landscape plan must be resubmitted for review. This process will continue
until all requirements have been met.

E. PERMITS

1. Issuance: No permits shall be issuedfor building, paving, grading, or
construction of any Multi-Family Dwelling or Non-Residential Usedevelopment
until the landscapeplan is approved by the Adrnjnistrator, or his/her designee.

2. Certificate of Occupancy: All landscaping req~,~~i:nentsof this Section, including
the requirements contained in an approve",~J~~ndscapeplan or agreement must
be met prior to the issuanceof a Certifi,~~!~of ()~cupancyfor any project to
which these regulations apply. '=""," c: ~,~ 'L

3. Temporary Certificate of OCCUpaIlCV:-lf construciiofi~9f a project occurs during a
seasonof the year in which th~p!~m"inistrator, or hiJh~r"c!esignee, determines it
would be impractical to establi~'t11Ia[ldscaping,a conditi'6~IJemporary
Certificate of Occupancymay be :i~ued. The request for a 19-ti'(Ulionaltemporary
Certificate of Occupapcymust be sub'mi ~'n'writingalong witl:lhe
landscapingplans. If,gf~l,teo, the applic ust enter into an ~g~eementwith
the Village acknowledging'~iicQ_lJlplianceWI b, the landscapingrequirements will
be met within 90 daysf~o'mi~~(llr1ce.Should'compliance not take place as
agreed, rary Certificate ~'fOccu ancy-wll e revoked.

F. DEVIATIONS

,ar~::'''c",,~httoMUlil-:-:famiIYDwelling or Non-Residential Use
prop~tll!f~iin existen "',prI6~ft'othe effecti~~'-aateofthis Sectionwhich do not currently

,,,,,til;efthe i~ndsclping requk~ments~ot{1:Iinedherein, the Planningand Zoning
c"CC;:rl1missionmay~~"'Love a'11~,gscapepian with deviations from these requirements .

. .<'!

1.-trb,~yiationsmust be requested in writing outlining which portion(s) of this Section
~hb.tld not apply~~Cndwhy.

, , uch deviat'ibnswill only be granted if the requirements of this Section
,,~plp~=t~asonably complied with becauseof the existing developed

c;~tU9fjs. In all other instancesthe property must be brought to the
curre'ffr minimum standards.

b. Any deviance granted will be specific and list which portions of this
section do not apply. No deviance granted will exempt the property from
regular maintenance.

2. An applicant may appeal to the Zoning Boardof Adjustments for final
determination any:

a. Decisionof the Administrator that a landscapeplan does not meet the
requirements set forth in this Section; or

9.2.16 3



b. Refusal of the Administrator to approve a requested deviation from this
Section.

G. GENERALPLANTING REQUIREMENTSAND DESIGNSTANDARDS

The planting specifications and standards included herein are applicable unless
otherwise stated. Any landscaping element installed to satisfy the requirements of this
chapter must meet the following requirements.

1. All required trees, shrubs, vines, groundcovers.jmd turf must be of a species
permitted in the LandscapeStandards DesignM1lilual.

2. No more than fifty percent (50%) of the r~gm~~d-trees and shrubs shall be of the
same species without the approval of tIJ'e A'affilp~trator, or his/her designee.

a. Such approval may only be grClQt~din order-to achieve specific design
intent of the landscape aLchjI~i\.

3. Improved soils and mulch mustl!F~~t criteria specifiedT':~ he Landscape
Standards DesignManual. ~j~

4. All landscaping shall be separated-fronLvehiclilar use areas b'/Bilpiers of raised
concrete curbing. Alilaru:Jscape beds""(~ijj-II epa rated from ~~~areas by some
form of barrier such as ~t~-eledging, maso' ,~materials, or another equivalent
durable material as approye~ 6-Y~th.eAdmi~l~t!ator. No plastic materials shall be
allowed. C",._ ';r;~ 'j S';;-

5. Nothing~:bl{1;;b_e,.erected,plac~d, allo-~.s
vision~-iiiH"~"'sl·ght\.l.isibility Tri~hgle.

6. No arti~~j~J plant "Mt~terial may'-~~ ed in any'form to satisfy the requirements
of this Secfihn. .-

;_~~-.

ands~~liipg ~l~edJQ;;utility ea~glJ1entsor the public right-of-way shall not
t~d to,~;,;,-::-;·,o;the-';riir'1im)t01I~j§~~scapingrequirements.~~~3=.~
Mus . e a mihirn~ of seven feet (7') in overall height and a minimum of
three rnch~s (3/1) 'in caliper at the time of planting.
Must be"pia.nted i~"a pervious area no less than four feet (4') wide in any
direction'~asured from the center of the tree.
ixty peri~--;-~t(60%) of required trees must be evergreen with year round
liagefc'"

d. Not['r~;[s''will be planted in the R.O.W. Mature tree canopy should not
encroach on, and shall be sixteen (16') above the roadway.

9. Shrubs
a. Must be a minimum size of 3 gallons.
b. Must be planted in a pervious area no less than three feet (3') wide in any

direction measured from the center of the tree.
c. 80% of shrubs must be evergreen.

10. Vines
a. Must be a minimum of 30 inches (30/1) in height at the time of planting

9.2.16 4



b. May be used in conjunction with fences to meet screening and buffering
requirements.

11.Turf
a. Must be spaced to create 100% coverage within six months of planting.
b. Solid sod must be used to provide coverage and soil stabilization in

swales, sloped, or other areas subject to erosion.
c. In areas where other than solid sod is allowed, annual rye grass seed

must be sown for immediate effect and protection until coverage is
achieved

12.Groundcovers
a. Weed barriers shall not be used in fO tion with groundcovers,

provided however newspaper or, atural materials may be utilized
at initial planting to facilitate Y:J e con rol

b. Must not have greater than) '~Jf spacing

H. TREEPRESERVATION
The Landscape Plan must provide for thepla-l1ting oflwO (2) large i Rla!:=ementtrees to
be planted for each protected tree to be r~rri:Q:~,eq.~t\1ristof protectedi:r~es and
acceptable replacements can b~Jpund in the [;jhd~~~peStandards De~ig~Manual.
Tree replacement requirement~;~6 Iy to B'b1l~Q~Arc,Ashe Junipers, Hackberry,
Willow, Cottonwood, Cedar, and~es s unl'~~tt~ey are 12' caliper or greater
when removed.

r t es required to be planted under
of seven feet (7') and three inches (3") in

or land de\i.ruopment, the developer shall clearly mark all
(eta~!1edon-site;"and may be required to erect and maintain
ndllh~~uch trees or groups of trees.
all not allow the movement of equipment or the storage of
rials, debris to be placed within the drip line of any trees
d for preservation.

hall not allow fill or topsoil to be placed within the drip line of
are designated for preservation.

2. During the const on phase of development, the developer shall not allow
cleaning of equipment or material under the canopy of any tree or group of trees
that are being preserved.

a. Neither shall the developer allow the disposal of any waste/toxic material
such as, but not limited to, paint, oil, solvents, asphalt, concrete, mortar, etc.,
under the canopy of any tree or groups of trees to remain.

9.2.16 5



I. SIGHT, DISTANCE,AND VISIBILITY

Rigid compliance with these landscaping requirements shall not be such as to cause
visibility obstructions and/or blind corners at intersections, this area is commonly
referred to as a sight visibility triangle.

1. Sight Visibility Triangle: An area (15 feet by 15 feet) located near a street, alley,
or driveway intersection in which no structure or landscaping may be installed
which will obstruct views (at a level between 3 feet above grade and 8 feet
above grade) and create a traffic or pedestrian b)~ard.

a. Trees may be permitted in this areaJ'-t~~1fl~d they are trimmed three to
eight feet (3' - 8') in such a manne~1li~;'~ 0 limbs or foliage extend into
the cross visibility area. ","If':''"..

I,
I
I
I

------------------------------------------_j

2. Proximit co~~cce~§gWay~and DriV:~-,vvays:Landscaping, except required grass
n:Q0.lo,wgr~ttiJ!tc9j~f,!fstl~'Jtr)Qt be'Td'~ated closer than three feet (3') from the

e;a~~O-f;~qyac~~~~ay P~~~W)~btor'*'erriveway.
ReductiWrtlQ.hRerri6~Nisibility'Obstruction: In the even that other visibility
obstructio~'~,g app"areOSin the proposed landscape plan, as determined by the

~"_~dministratoi;urfi his/he~i'a'esignee, the requirements set forth in this Section 5.2
"ffu~' .be reducedto'the ext:~t to remove the conflict.

'{'-':n-so

J.

The owner, tenant, and/or their agent shall be jointly and severally responsible for the
maintenance of all landscaping. All required landscaping shall be maintained in a neat
and orderly manner at all times.

1. Replacement of Living Materials: Plant materials that are required according to
this Section which become diseased, deteriorated, or die shall be replaced with
plant materials of similar variety and size within ninety (90) days.

a. A time extension for replacement of plant materials that have died may
be granted by the Administrator or his/her designee, if substantial

9.2.16 6



evidence is presented to indicate abnormal circumstances beyond the
control of the owner or his/her agent.

2. All landscaped areas must be irrigated on a regular basis and in accordance with
any water management restrictions

3. Nonconformance and Failure to Maintain: If at any time after the issuance of a
Certificate of Occupancy the approved landscaping is found to be not in
conformance with the standards and criteria of this Section, the Administrator,
or his/her designee, shall issue notice to the owner citing the violation and
describing what action is required to comply.

b. The owner, tenant, or agent shall have{hirty (30) days from date of
notice to establish/restore the Ian ",,-t-~i~gas required.

c. If landscaping is not established 0 s.ored within the allotted time, then
such a person is in violation of t rd'i~"~1n:~~.Failure to maintain any
landscape area in complia_!1~twith this Se~t'i®_i_sconsidered a violation
of this Section and may :'¥f~'Ubjectto penalti~~:~et forth in Section VI of
this Ordinance.

K. NON-RESIDENTIALLANDSCAe~i;f{_E.QUIREMENTS
:,~ '~~:<:E{L~~

Each site must provide a mini~uiP _ol(~"f_OlloWing lan(:ts_£~peelements.
1. Landscap~Ar~a_:.A minim~'rti9ffift~en~PJ~Jfent rl~l;)._ofthe total site area must

be lan~lAp~t:t!.,l!l:l:living tr~~~l_shrub:~'fftl~~lnd/~'fTroundcover and must be
irrigatgg? -- - -

a. Ar~~W- ated ir!;ltle public n t.-of-way do not count toward the total
lan9s~1J>~,_e_reareq~it~rnent.

reas ~_:~~sit~""ot c:Q_'L~_redby building, pavement, or similar permanent
i (OS!_g_me~'trmustbe I:rra~~pea- with trees, shrubs, turf, and/or
grou~:a~4L'her. -'-+-;;-

A maxim' -=a.pfthe iflgen (15%) of the required Landscape Area may be tree
mulch, rivei-'tock or granite mix as per the Landscape Standards Design

nual and c:p,iltractor Specifications Guide, Edition 2013.
2. areas~~~st consist of plants from the Approved Plant List, covering

rii185%) of the required landscaped area.
a. five percent (75%) of the landscape area must be located in

nd side yard.
b. All plants used to satisfy the requirements of this Section must be located in

landscaped areas that are at least three feet (3') in width.
c. Each required tree must be planted in a landscaped area of at least sixteen

(16) square feet.
3. Drainage facilities are not allowed within the landscape area except those that

are necessary to convey drainage in the shortest possible route to or from the
public street right-of-way.

9.2.16 7



a. Drainage facilities include detention ponds, water quality ponds, outlet
structures, drainage berms, or other improvements associated with the
drainage improvements.

b. Any drainage facility must have a natural look, using natural stone and
landscaping with minimum slopes.

4. Vegetation must be used to soften the appearance of walls, including those used
for screening.
a. This may include vines trained up the wall or minimum five (5) gallon shrubs

planted a minimum of thirty inches on center reaching three feet (3') in
height within one year.

5. Foundation plantings are required on all f""_"""'~""c~e
within a planting area a minimum of
(50%) of the length of any front and cS~
Foundation planting may count tqc~~y:athe requ
required in paragraph K(l) abq,){,~c~;:~

6. A landscapedstreet buffer is req~lred adjacent to any p reet right-of-way.
a. A minimum front street buffer width is 15' A minim ''''''''''<'-.-I''n street buffer

width is 10'. Buffe[~,!l1ayinclud~C'tl~,s!"d~",£"cIk
b. The following uses'r~~gtlirefront an(PsTd'1~streetbuffers asspecified in the

table below. Each'bY:lfer1)\Y~Jcontai~'[i'lQQtinuous evergreen hedge, large
trees with a minimu'ffi~lhre"ffch~(~") cali~r ~nd seven foot (7') height, and
must ed for e~chtwenty'1=1gt(20') ~lf~rltage along public street

measu'~eB 10 "~~rl '~~~"

cing a public street, and
in depth along fifty percent

e to the public.
imum landscapearea

Front and SideYard
Buffer Width

25'
25'

25'
25'
25'
25'
25'

50'

c. One large tree with a minimum three inch (3") caliper and seven foot (7')
height must be planted for each thirty feet (30') of frontage along public
street right-of-ways, asmeasured along the lot line.

9.2.16 8



d. May be planted in a regular interval or in clusters. Exception: In the Historic
District canopy trees must be planted in regular, linear intervals and cannot
be clustered.

e. Four (4) ornamental trees or two (2) medium canopy trees may be
substituted for each large tree under power lines.

f. In all districts except the Historic District, berms not less than twenty-four
inches (24") nor more than forty-eight inches (48") in height at no more than
a four to one slope are required.

g. One minimum two inch (2") caliper ornamental tree must be planted for
each thirty feet (30') of frontage along publiet~treet rights-of-way as
measured along the lot lines.

h. Meandering concrete sidewalks are I&' _'t~cLwithin the street buffer the
entire length of any street frontage irr-'a~~co=falhc_ewith the Transportation
Plan Street Profiles, Technical, E'~'str~ction Stlnaards and Specifications, and
the Subdivision Ordinance.

7. Any of the following must be sc g~t;!!!edby a continuous ;~"g~or shrubs, earthen
berms, or retaining walls that ar~HN9 and one-h,9lf to fou~le]l~Ln height. If walls
are used to provide sq,~~ning, one ;h"(t;I:b,or e-must be pla~~1hQn the street
side of the berm for ~~%bten feet (10')"crr~ et frontage. 4§C"

a. Parking lot or vehi~l~~;M; ar~a;
b. Fuel pumps visible ffoInc th"e~djrg~.tionof t affj~flow;
c. Vehic -through j~[l1dows'''fi~h - he st~;l;;_Q_rtraffic flow.

~y) ~:tif~
Strade Tree

~ La=pe ~-,
8. Landscape~. p:t:r~ing islands are required as follows in all parking lots. Parking

islands may"cBGnt toward the required minimum landscape area.
a. Interior islands: A curbed landscape island must be provided for every ten

(10) parking spaces. Each island must be a minimum of 170 square feet in
area and ten feet (10') in width back-of-curb to back-of-curb, and be
dispersed throughout the parking lot. A minimum thee inch (3") caliper tree
is required in each island. The remaining area must be landscaped with
plants not exceeding three feet (3') tall.

9.2.16 9



b. Terminal (End) islands: All parking rows must terminate in a curbed
landscape island. Each terminal island must be a minimum of 360 square
feet in area and contain two minimum three inch (3") caliper trees.

c. Median islands: A curbed median island a minimum of ten feet (10') in
width back-of-curb to back-of-curb must be located after every third parking
bay and along primary internal access drives. Each median island must
contain one minimum three inch (3") caliper tree a minimum of every thirty
feet (3~') on center.

Intemal
Island -.."

BufferYard I."ANOIIi¢AJ'¢ ,$l"UP /
M(DO ..... l.iv'(UIIC',voc15t.ANO

1800.

L.

:b~_. - ernlse u's;ed,tr1on~~51Qr.a .!tJ~sidential use that abuts another premise
zone .•c,,,,~~edfoL17ingie o;'lt.'~l~I!1'ii~:lDwellings must have an opaque
screeni~g.I~lll;e. -"'~"'l"

Fence ~f'~i\tb,e a mi61t:tlUmof six feet (6') in height.
Must be loc~t d alongfbe abutting lot line, from the front building line to the
ar lot line.
_~e is not .."~..uired if a comparable fence is already existing on the

abU'llQg r~~i:[(;'tial property.
2. All side y~~1:tfarare not street side yards must contain a six foot (6') wide

landscaped"artea extending from the front lot line to the rear lot line.
a. Must contain one (1) tree for each thirty linear feet of landscaping or

screening, or portion thereof.
3. Any premise used or zoned for a Non-Residential use that contains a parking lot

or vehicle use area in a side or rear yard that abuts a premise used or zoned for
Non-Residential use, must have a screen of hedges, berms, or fencing.
a. Must be a minimum of three and one half feet (3 1/2') and a maximum of

eight feet (8') in height.

9.2.16 10



b. Must be located between the parking lot and/or vehicle use area and the
side or rear lot line so as to provide screening for twenty-five percent (25%)
of the parking lot and vehicle use area.

c. May be grouped and dispensed randomly and need not be spaced evenly.
d. Must contain one (1) tree for each fifty linear feet of screened area, or

portion thereof, unless the premise to which this section applies and the
abutting property are both located in an M-1 or M-2 district, then the area to
be screened must contain one (1) tree for each seventy-five linear feet of
screened area.

4. See also Section 5.38 Fencing, Walls, and Sc

A. The requirements of this Subsection are limited to new
town home properties.

1. Minimum of two (2) large tree ""iig~ least two inches (~~f1a.£~liPeror one (1)
tree of at least four inches (4") in calrpe'r/-_~even7,' eet high sHW-\ planted in the

-·"·~L:;'''~·

front yard on each lot or;

Section 5.2.2 Landscaping:Residential

a. Minimum of one (1)
thereof, measured a

b.

2

Requirements

each fifty fe~~(50') of lot width or portion
-.::_;","'~

be landscap ~~Ild contain a three foot (3') high screen
:>LII.t<-.U. a co'nti,,,:,uousbe~~, hedge, or wall.

asoutlined in Section 5.2.1 applies.

9.2.16 11



B. The requirements of this subsection are limited to new development of residential
single family housing

1. Earthwise, sustainable landscapethat is drought-tolerant and deer resistant is
recommended.

2. Usethe LandscapeStandardsDesignManual asa guide to selecting turf,
foundation plants, and trees.

a. Minimum of one (1) tree for each fifty feet (50') of lot width or portion
thereof, measured along the Front Lot Line.

b. Treesmay be clustered or spaced linearly and need not be placed evenly
at fifty foot (50') intervals.

3. Maintenance, asoutlined in Section 5.2.1J.a ... s.
4. At least fifty percent (50%)of the frontYi!I1ijc~~B'"be landscaped:turf, bordered

mulch or gravel beds, shrubs, flowe tl¢~"

9.2.16 12



Appendix E

NON-RESIDENTIAL STANDARDS
APPLICABILITY TABLE

New construction

Increase in gross floor area of 50%or more

Increase in gross floor area of 25%- 49%

Increase in gross floor area of 10%- 24%

Restoration or rehabilitation of existing structure with no increase in gross floor area

Restoration of a building or structure which has been damaged, destroyed or
demolished to an extent lessthan 50 percent of its fair market value (asdetermined
by the most recent appraised value of the appraisal district in which the building or
structure is located
Interior only restoration or rehabilitation of existing structure with no increase in
gross floor area or alter the location of exterior walls

The exterior or interior restoration of a building with a historic designation

Any change or conversion of commercial land usesthat result in the requirement for
additional parking to be constructed. In this case,the landscape requirements shall
apply only to the newly proposed parking area and other areas of the site being
modified by development activities

All new landscaping that is installed



PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE ZONING ORDINANCE

Section S.3C - Fences in Residential Areas

C. Fences in Residential Areas

1. Locational Criteria and Height:

a. Any fence or wall shall not exceed eight feet (8') in height above the
adjacent grade.

b. No fence or wall shall be permitted within the required front yard of any
single-family residential lot except:
(1) A fence, wall, screen or similar barrier erected in the front yard setback
shall not exceed 48 inches in height above the grade of the centerline of the
adjacent street.
(2) A fence, wall, screen or similar barrier shall not exceed 36 inches in
height above the grade of the centerline of the adjacent street and may be made
of a solid material as provided in Section 5.3C2.
(3) A barrier that is higher than 36 inches must have an open design, with
a minimum of 50 percent opacity or visibility, so as not to impose a visual barrier

c. No residential fence shall be closer than fifteen feet (15') to a street
right-of-way.

2. Allowed Materials
Fences, walls, screens, enclosures and gates must be constructed of one or a
combination of the following materials:

a. Decorative aluminum, steel or wrought iron
b. Exterior Insulation and finish systems with integrated color (EIFS);
c. Composite (manufactured for fencing with appearance of wood or stone);
d. Fired brick;
e. Latticework that does not exceed 2 feet in height and is anchored as a

design element at the top of a 6-foot tall fence;
f. Natural stone;
g. Pipe (not in combination with welded wire panels or rolled materials)
h. Pre-cast concrete with integrated color
i. Split faced concrete block;
j. Split rail, post and rail;
k. Stucco with integrated color;
I. Welded wire panels each with decorative framing (not rolled material,

minimum 4 gauge, with erosion/rust prevention treatment)
m. Wood planks/pickets;
n. Vinyl planks, pickets, or panels

7/31/2016 1 I P age



Prohibited Materials

a. Materials not listed as Allowed Materials are prohibited. Permits shall not be
issued for materials not manufactured specifically for residential fencing,
such as fibrous masonry products, landscape timbers, railroad ties,
latticework panels, plywood, corrugated steel panels or fiberglass panels.

b. Barbed Wire, Electrical, and Chain Link Fencing: Barbed wire,
electrical, 0 r chain link fencing is prohibited as perimeter fencing
except for containment of allowed farm animals on parcels of one (1) or
more acres.

3. Vehicular Access Gates: Gates designed for vehicular access shall be set
back from front the property line a minimum of twenty-five feet (25').

4. Swimming Pool Fences: Fences around swimming pools shall comply with the
Standard Swimming Pool Code/International Swimming Pool and Spa Code and
the Village of Salado's codes or ordinances pertaining to same.

5. Sight Distance & Visibility: Section 5.5.J provides the sight visibility
requirements for fences and screening walls.

6. Other Types of Fencing: Special purpose fencing, such as chain link fencing
around tennis courts, or coated chain link (installed as manufacture, without
affixing materials such as slats and tarps and only on lots of 2 acres in size or
greater) may be permitted with Administrator approval.

7. Construction: Fence framing and posts on fences visible from a public street
must be placed to the interior of the lot so that they are not visible from the street.
Unless a continuous masonry beam extends beneath a wooden privacy fence,
rot board must be used and attached to the base ofwooden privacy fence pickets
to prevent warping of materials. In order to protect the deer population, no fence
may have spikes or pointed tops of any kind; top edges must be rounded or flat.

8. Permit Required: A permit is required for all fences and walls.
9. Drainage and Utility Conflicts: All fencing that will cause a diversion of water

runoff or otherwise prevent the natural flow of storm water shall require review by
the Village Engineer prior to approval. Walls or other fencing proposed to be
located near a public utility easement or buried or above-ground utility equipment
that are made up of masonry or a similar product and containing a poured
foundation shall require review by the City Administrator prior to approval.
Approval shall require a release from the utility for proposed construction.

7/31/2016 21Page



Section 2.2B6 - Planning and Zoning Commission, Created; Membership; Officers; Rules & Bylaws:

1. The members of the Commission shall regularly attend meetings and public hearings of the
Commission, shall serve without compensation, and shall not hold any other office within, or serve as
an employee of, the Village while serving on the Commission. The Commission shall meet a
minimum of eoo&-twiceper month at a time established by the Board of Aldermen. Ifthere have been
no applications filed for review by the Commission and there is no other business to discuss, the
Village Administrator may direct the Village Secretary to notify the Chairman and the meeting will
be considered cancelled. no meeting will be required for that month.



Flate 3-1 <jz
c
ro "o- lL

..... D- 8sr- 0V
If) D

::3 :5 §
~

+

\J \))
C lL
ro 0 8

:::_j uJ 0
_£

\.J ~'
B

V m

~
'u
0

L. ~_j ~
:J _j 0 <{

'"4-l > ...2;l;
"""0

:J U N

V!fS'u_ c m
~ 2

8
C_n
o o

8 OIL

~-----~..,~.~
~-::.::,..

.~. '\.


